NUMBER TWO

1986

TISSN-0018-3636




HOLLINGSWORTH "REGISTER

Compiled, Mimeographed and Published
by
Harry Hollingsworth, C. G., R. G.
3250 West 108th Street, Inglewood California 90303 U.S.A.
(Make checks payable to him.)

TISSUED QUARTERLY - YEARLY SUBSCRIPTION $10.00 - SINGLE TfEUE“ $3.00°
BACK ISSUES_OLDER THAN THE CURRENT SUBSCRIPTION_YEAR ARE $4,.00 EACH

VOLUME 22, NUMBER 2, JUNE, 1986
WHOLE NUMBER 86 |
CONTENTS
Zditor's Comments - Los Angeles Central Library fire ........ 21
"Killwarling” - Birthplace of Anne Calvert Holli ngsworth .... 21

MICHAEL HARRISON, (the man who sold Val Hollingsworth his farm) 24
Henry Bollinworth's Holding (at "Ballyvickcrannell®) ........ 29

A Really "Holy" Man found in the CensusS! ....ocoeccovoses . 30
Mr. William Keating -~ First Mate of the Brigantine "Wllllam" 30
"Alive" in the U.S. Census of 1860 but Dead in her Grave! ... 31
First Lieutenant Henry Hollingsworth's War Diary .......... .. - 31
HOLLINGSWORTH MISCELLANY (See Item 7 - Census Taker's Bill).. 32
Bibb ‘County, Georgia Hollingsworth Marriages ....... Ce e esenan 33

Corrections & Additions on Macedonla Cemetery retordSe.evecees 33
Letters to the Editor:

(1) From Robert Hollingsworth, Portadown, K. Ire., 1965. 34
(2) Penna. State Library on 1870 State Copy Fed. Census. 35

U.S. Census of 1870 - COLORADO TERRITORY (We missed 33!) ves 35
Part Two of 1870 Kentucky Hollingsworths Postponed ........ .o 35

U. S. CENSUS OF 1860 - MONROE CO., MISSOURI CORRECTIONS ETC.. 36
MISSOURI HOLLINGSWORTH MARRIAGES - FROM 17 COUNTIES! ........ 36

Oneida County, New York, Hollingworth Naturalizations ....... 38
OBITUARY Frederick Holllngsworth Vancouver, Canada - 1953 . 38

Announcements: Mrs. Lillian H. Ramirez, 1310 Larkwood Dr., Austin, TX 78723 advis=
es us that she will answer all the long overdue mail before the end of the year.

Betty Hollandsworth Jackson, 2203 W, Norwich, Fresno, CA 93705 is completing her
book THE HOLLY TREE, to contain about 600 pages and records of over 200 families
in line from VINCENT HOLL INGSWORTH of Wilkes & Ashe Counties, North Carolina.
Pre-publication price is $35.00 but if enough orders are received a refund may be
in order for an adjusted price. No extras will be printed, so order now.




-21 =

EDITOR'S COMMENTS - LOS ANGELES CENTRAL LIBRARY FIRE AND CLOSING.

On Tues. 29 Apr 1986 a fire now adjudged arson broke out in 2nd
story stacks near the Science and Patents sections of the Central Lib-
rary, 630 W. 5th St., Los Angeles. It took 8 hours to put it out, hun-
dreds of firefighters either quelling the blaze or covering up other
books to protect them from smoke and water damage. The stacks, which
I was only once allowed to visit, range to seven stories within the
concrete and steel landmark. The lefels are catwalks 3 feet wide made
of rubber covered steel. With no fire proof shutters, sprinkling sys-
tem or other cautions, the flames roared upward and crecated a kiin cf-
fect. Politicans in this city had been warned that this building was
a literary disaster waiting to happen for over 20 years. Some heads
may roll as a consequence of such negligence! Of the scme two million
books housed there, nearly half were damaged, about half a million be-
ing destroyed, the rest now being freeze-dried or otherwise treated to
save them. All the patents (totally copies) were destroyed. Apparently
the cookbooks in the Science room were too, but H.Hollingsworth had,
in 1982, Xerox copied from cover to cover, the only 5 different Indo-
nesian Quisine editions (his favorite food - hotter than Hell) thus
totally "“saving® that section - but violating copyrights in the doing.

The Genealogy Section is totally intact, being in a one story
gquad shaped wing on the east side. History, Social Science and possib-
ly the directory collection, and the newspapers, are alright. But the
building - we hear - will never be used again and it will be sometime
before re-opening any collection. (Other 'sources' report that the
rorgeous edifice, an historical landmark but on a site which many of
the "greedy sort" would love to get as their own - across from the
Bonaventure Hotel, the Arco Towers and the World Trades Center - will
be turned into sort of a literary museum in conjunction with a high-
rise to be built on its east side across from the Biltmore Hotel.%

The closing does not hurt the production of this journal so far.
But it has put a crimp in your editor's own ability to work as a pro-
fessional genealogist almost as bad as in late 1976 when the Mormon
Temple Genealogical Library closed for the better part of a year.

(L (OO CCCCO COOOeeeecce I I )I¥Y) )

"Killwarling® - Birthplace gﬁ Anne Calvert Hollingsworth

Lurgan Quaker record book gives this information on page 203:
", ..and upon the twelueth day of the fouerth month (June - Ed.)}, Anno
Domi 1672 (Vallantine Hollingsworth) againe tooke to Wife Ann the Dau-
ghter of Thomas Calluart of Dromgorr in the parish of Sego and County
of Ardmagh aforsd and of Jane his wifee Who was borne in Killwarling in
ye County of Down, about y€ ninth month Anno Domi 1650 ... Page 200:-
"Thomas Calvert ... and about the 1lth of y® 2nd month (April - Ed.),
1647 he took to wife Jane, daughter of Hugh Glasford and of Margaret
his wife, of Stranmillis zneere Belfast) in the County of Antrim, and
had by her children borne as followeth --- Ann Calvert first daughter
of Thomas Calvert and Jane his wife was borne in Killwarlin (neere
Hillsborough) in the County of Down about the ninth month (Nov.), An-
ne Domini, 1650 =--*
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(In passing we agonize in our hindsight: The Hollingsworth record - the
full text not printed here but in early HR editions - is not at all as
detailed as to the origins of the family as the Calvert record, which
supplies the exact parish (Skelton-in~Cleveland, North Riding), while
Valentine Hollingsworth gives nothing so much as a passing clue! Why?
Typical of the Hollingsworth blood, like our Frederick Hollingsworth,
not a relative of Valentine, who never left a clue to his Irish origin-
+that we know of, letting some heir write in the word "Wexford" in his

dictionary which broke the bayriers down.)

The Calverts may be properly styled "early Ulster Plantation set~
tlers," coming over before 1617 from Yorkshireé to Arma h,. where Thomas
was born in that year at Legacory {in Shankiil Parish). John is not
listed in the Muster Roll of Ulster, ca 1630 Brit. Library Additional
MS. 4770, but Edward and Robert Caluert are numbers 16 and 22 f. 35-R
Lord Grandison's 1,000.acres and two Christopher Caluerts are found in
the Co Fermanagh roll, f 53 with sword & pike on Sir Gerrard Lowther's
2000 acre plantation and ' on Mr fflowerdew'!'s like sized estate # 2
£ 54 with sword and calleuer. Edward and Robert had no arms assessed.)

.. From the autumn of 1641 the turmoil of the O'Neill uprising ag-
ainst the British settlers (now neatly called the 'Irish Civil War!
among Erin's scholars to take the edge off of the terrorist massacre
that it in fact was) drove tens of thousands of the Protestants away
either back into England or toward Carrickfergus (then Knockfergus) or
Belfast for safety. This may explain Thomas Calvert's finding his way
‘to Killwarling so-called. o o

Rev. George Hill in his astounding An Historical Account of the
Plantation in Ulster (1877) p. 39 note (33) and the chapter Ulster Be-
fore the Plantation, explains: #2. When the Earl (of Tyrone - Hugh O!
Neal or Neill - Ed. HR) brought into submission to English authority
the upper Clandhubois in the time of Con McNeile Oge (son of Neal Oge,
d 1537 Ed.)  Kilultagh, KILWARLYN, McCarten's and O'Hanlons country and
11l McMahon's country... (footnote 33) "KIIWARLYN, a portion of Lower
“veagh (Barony) adjoining Killultagh was known in the. sixteenth (1500s)
century as Kilwarlin, which is variously written Kilmarlin, Kilwarly,
Filwarninge, and Kilwarney. This tract comprehended the parish of:
Hillsborough, and the neighbouring parts of Blaris (Lisburn - Ed.),
Moira, Dromore and Dromara ... It was the patrimoney .of a branch of the
Magennis family which was called Mac Rory, from Rudhraighe, an ances-
tor... In 1575, Ever Mac Rory of Kilwarlyn made a surrender of this
tract to Queen Elizabeth, and took out a patent for the same.," (See
Reeves's Ecclesiastical Antiquities, p. 389.) The "woodmen of Kilwar-
lin" were always considered a formidable power in Ulster, and when
. "bringing them into subjection," the earl was assuredly éoing-a loyal
turn for the government. (Remember, it was this same Hugh O'Neill, the
Earl of Tyrone, dubbed that by Q. E. I., whose flight to Rome with the
Tarl of Tyrconnell, brought on the confiscation and subsequent
plantation of Ulster by King :James I.) - 3

We sec that the ﬁmractﬁfWas’stiil.known'as Kilwarling in the mid
- 17th century when Thomas Calwert submitted his family record to the
-clerk of Lurgan Quaker Meeting. E
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However, Tom!'s useage of "ancient nomenclature" has deprived his
eager descendants of an exact place of birth for Ann or Anne his eld-
est danghter. This is a pity, for in Ireland, in spite of other awf-
ul difficulties, once an exact place of an event 1s known it usually
is very exact - minutely so, thanks to the townland unit. She wac in
a1l likelihood born within what is now the civil parish of Hillstor-
ough, Co Down, just over the River Lagan about 14 miles east of Ferta-
down, the largest town near the Ballyvickcrannell (now Ballymacrandal)
tovnland farm of Valentine Hollingsworth. Magheralin and lMoira par-
iches are between these two points. The registers of no sort or deno-
mination of church survive for this period of time.¥®(The earlicss en-
tries for any church register are those for St, John's, Dublin, which
begin in 1619, but the originals were destroyed-after a portion had
been printed - in 1922.) The Quaker memoir is all we will probabliy ev-
er get about Ann's birthplace. She was born in the walc ol the
execution of King Charles I. and living in that part of Ircland, cven
though it was nearly a decade after the Rebellion and the massacre at
Portadown Bridge, was not an easy existance. Maybe Thomas Calvert was
not domiciled at the time of Ann's birth and he honestly could not be
certain of the exact location of the event. igee page 25 Footaote.

In our coverage of MS L4770, we also went over our microfilm of
County Antrim but found nobody listed named Glasford. We were on the
lookout for Hugh Glasford, the father-in-law of Thomas Calvert. It
is probable that he came Ifrom Scotland after 1630. The surname is of
Scottish origin. The International Genealogical Index (IGI) on fiche
shows a large number of the name in Lanarkshire, but Church of Scot-
land parish registers are all of a later commencement than what we
need for Hugh Glasford's christening, or his proclamation for mar-
riage. Of course, we are assuming he was of the Scottish Church. If
he conformed to the English Church there might be some hope to find
him if he was born in England or married there.

After Cromwell's death and Charles II. was restored to his king-
dom (thank God!), the Calverts were back in Seagoe Parish, where we
find Thomas Calvert at the townland of Killurgan (not now identifiable
on modern maps) in the 1664 Hearthmoney tax roll for Seagoe Parish,
while dJohn Calvert is listed at Drumgorr, who may in fact be the
father of Thomas, then at least in his late 70s, (HR Oct 1965 pp.
102-104.)but would more probably be an older brother of Thomas, born
‘1 Yorkshire in 1610 (HR Mar 1979, p. 1 et seq.). There was a Thomas
Calvert at Morgenbriffe (now Monbrief) in Shankill Parish according
to the 1634 Subsidy Roll for that parish (HR Dec 1965 p. 183) but our
Thomas would only be 17, hence we long ago concluded that this man was
some kinsman to his father, perhaps a brother, the same who was murd-
ered by hanging in 1641 by the rebels, of which, see our next article.

Those of you interested in pursuing this family in Ireland via
searches in manuscript materials, i.e. estate rentals (rent rolls),
original leases, etc., should contact the Ulster Historical Foundation
66 Balmoral Avenue, Belfast BT9 6NY, Northern Ireland, about the pos-
sibilities of such a canvass. A deposit of at least $25.00 is advisa-
ble, and one should send along a list of what has been checked to
avoid the horror of duplication of effort.
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MICHAEL HARRISON

This is not a new name to HR readers. Over ?O years ago we pub-
lished details about him, the man who sold the farm to Valentine Hol-
lingsworth. Here is the full text of that document :

An Indenture made 22 Aug 1664, between Michael Harrison of Magher-
leave, Co. Antrim, HEsqr. & Valentine Hollingsworth of Ballyvick-cran-
ill, Co. Armagh, Yeoman. Whereby the said Michael, for the sum of Ir10
sold to the said Valentine & his heirs for ever, all that Townland, Vil-
lage, Hamlet & Circuit of land called Ballyvickcrannell, lying in
Clanbrassell & in the Manor of Crabracka (Corabracke), 120 acres, more
or legs - Harrison & his Heirs to dig for & carry away any Mineral or
Quarry. Inrolled 20 May 1665. (Margin: 2& & sut of Court at ye Mr. of
Cor?bracke & usual customs Performed by. ye Freeholders of ye said Man-
or.

(From John Lodge's (Ulster King of Arms) transcript of Irish Rolls .
Charles II. Vol. VII, p. 164 No. 3 %LDS film 14462 pt. 4), which were

in the fireproof strong room called The Treasury in the oid FourCourts
building in Dublin thus escaping incineration during the bombing and
fire of 30 June 1922, Unfortunately the original rolls, and many oth-
er records of a seven hundred year history were not so lucky! The ori-
ginal wills and most of their recorded copies were cooked. Strange idea
of a "treasury.") :

An' earlier deed at page 17, 22 Aug 1660 from Anthony Cope ofLogh- .
gall to Valentine Blacker of Carricke, sold many townlands including
Dromane & Anewy alias Dromand (today's Drumnacanvy), Dromanlichnegril-
lagh (now Drumlisnagrilly), Ballybreagh alias Ballyvreagh (now Breagh),
Carricke (today's Carrick}, Ballahonaghah als Bellahuraghan (we think
this is today's Ballyhannon) and Ballymonaghie (Now Ballydonaghy??).
The Ballynaghy millsite which Hollingsworth and Blacker quarreled over
in the 1670s may be this Ballymonaghie. Townland names were not stan-
dardized into English from the Gaelic until the Ordnance Survey of the
mid 1800s. This property surrounds Ballymacrandal like a crescent
roon around a star. ?See HR Sept 1983 pp. 51-54.) Enrolled 13 Feb
1660/61. ‘ | ‘

One more deed enrolled at p. 79 No. 3 is from Anthony Cope, then
of Carrobracke, Co Armagh, Gent, to Michael Harrison, "Magherclane,"
Co. Antrim, Esqr. dated 23 June 1662. Here, Harrison purchased, for
BL87. a very large holding of about 25 townlands or parts of them,
including "Ballyvickranile™. It seems he obtained portions of some of
the same lands which were sold earlier to Blagker, including Dromon,
Dromonlisnegrelagh and Ballybreagh, and Ballynanaghie which seems to
be Ballynaghy today but we can't be certain. This great holding goes
south and west of Ballyvickcrannell and Portadown and may extend south
eastward into County Down. (I don't own the large 1 inch to a mile
Ordnance Survey map section for that area .which one needs to see the
outlines of townland boundaries. No ordinary map - not even a road at-
las - of Ireland is of any use for finding townlands except the 0.S,
sheets. -

From this holding, Harrison sold Ballyvickcrannell to Valentine
Hollingsworth. ' : » ,
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Hugh O'Neill's confiscated territory was first regranted by Pat-
ent 13 June 8th year of James I (1610) to William Powell of Castle Park
Co Stafford, England to whom the King owed arrears as one of his stab-
le equeries (managers). So we have this “genealogy” of Rallyvickeran-
nell: From The O'Neill to King James in 1607 by confiscation, to Wil-
liam Powell by Patent, 1610 and shortly thereafter to Richard Rolles~
ton, who sold to Richard Cope of Loughgall. He left it to his son An-
thony who patented it in 1639 and it passed to his son Anthony who sold
it to Michael Harrison in 1662. Harrison sold it to Valentine Hellingse
worth in 1664 and Val by representatives sold it to Rev. Henry Jenney
in 1688. All of that in only 81 years!

But what about Michael Harrison? Recently, I concentrated on him
with a view to finding out if he was related to the Hellingsworths. I
am sorry to report that this question has not been answered. But HR 1s
2nd always will be a clearing house for future researchers. Here are
the main facts we brought to light about this man.

Magherlaue (misinterpreted early on in HR as Magherlane because
the old 'v' was usually substituted by a 'u' (and vice versa) which
looked like an 'n'. Example: in the 1630 Muster Roll, Henry Hollin-
worth is assessed for weapons including ¥sword & calleuer® which we in
HR July 1965 p. 62-B interpreted as fcallener®), the site of Harrison's
home is the townland of Magheralave, in the parish of Derryaghy, Co.
Antrim. It straddles the line between Upper Belfast and Upper Masser-
eene Baronies, with 743 acres, 1 rood and 7 perches in the former and
157:3:37 in the latter (Ceneral Alphabetical Index to the Townlands,
etc., presented to ... Parliiament (1861), p. 683). This location is
not far north of Lisburn. You will see the townland called "Marlea'™ in
this article and elsewhere because the Gaelic pronunciation is very
close to that,(Remember: the surname Maher or Meagher is pronounced
Mar and you will understand the difficulties of the language.)

Due to the volume of material we have collected on this man, this
article will be continued. The last will and testament of MichaelHar-
rison is extant in the office copy made in Prerogative Will Book 1664~
168L, folio L46. (The book was undoubtedly used by O'Connor's IRA boys
in place of sand bags during the battle in the courts building, but it
does not bear the usual telltale marks such as holes blasted through
nundreds of pages or the whole upper portion blown away as we see on
films of the other ledgers so used.) A full transcript will appear in
the September issue. However, it should be noted.that Harrison's son-
in-law was Lieutenant Thomas Conway. This will surely surprise those
-ho know that Valentine Hollingsworth's daughter Mary married a manof
the same name, but often called Conoway or Conaway in records. Were
the two Tom Conway's related. I don't know!

If you haven't followed HR regularly you will again be taken a-
back by my repeating the fact that Valentine Blacker, Hollingsworth's
near neighbor,was married to Judith Harrison, daughter of "Michael
Harrison of Ballydargan, County Downl!® Surprised? That townland is
in the parish of Bright, Co. Down, some distance south of Belfast.
Was that, obviously older, Michael the father of our present subject?
Again: I don't know! (Burke: Landed Gentry of Ireland (1958) p. 81.)

WHOTE on p. 23: St. Fin Barr's Cathedral Registers once began in the 15G0s {fork,
ireland) but one curate, Mr Flack, during a violent araument with the 3ishop, threw
the earliest register into the firel (irish Genealouist Jul 1957 p. €2.)
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. Valentine's Quaker leanings and finally his conversion may have
created an uncrossable barrier between him and his relatives, One
should read Friends' histories, the life of William Penn, and Joseph
“esse's Sufferings, (taken from court records in Englandi and William
‘Stockdala's & Great Cry of Oppression (similar but for Ireland), to
come to a knowledge of the impact the Friends had on the mid 17th
century (1600s) in England. The only modern comparison I can think
of to better illustrate the problem is to call attention to the exper-
iences Jehovah's Witnesses had during World Wars One, Two and the Kor-
ean conflict with flag salutes, conscription and patriotism versus
Jéhovah. The JW's were - and still are - much more like the ancient
Quakers of 300 years ago than the modern Society of Friends. There are
major differences, of course. Valentine Hollingsworth surely ran a-
foul of many members of English society and suffered for his beliefs,
not just being tithed (taxed) for non-attendance at church.

Stockdale shows that Valentine suffered the regular seigure of
farm goods for the non-attendance "crime" for years before '"going for
America." It wouldn't surprise me to learn that he had early on turn-
ed his Quaker back on his family and shaken the dust off his boots to
those who had not accepted his "New Light" of faith.,

; Read William Edmundson's Journal and see how he, the founder of

" Lurgan Quaker Meeting - and of Quakerism in Ireland - treated his own
children who did not choose to accept their father's iron-handed zeal
(Edmundson was more a Puritan than a Friend). In his will he termed his
grandchildren (whom he did not name) as *"wicked" or "good", and call-
ed his son Samuel "unruly" and his daughter Hindrance (note the Puri--
tan style name) Seal "my foolish and disobedient daughter® and his
other daughter Anne Moore "rebellious! Of these children the Lurgan
Meeting records say nothing save their names and dates of birth, not
any "treatings™, disciplinings or disownments! Had the mighty "Ham-
mer" over Ireland clapped a 1lid of silence on their wayward ways? Even
when he was led by the Rapparees to be hanged in the 1690s, and one of
his sons was with him and had his head in a sack ready to die with his
_ father (but were spared), William Edmundson did not have the love or
"the pity to even call that son by name in his famous and much publish-
ed "Journal™, the publication of which he provided for in the will}
(Will, Prerogative Court, Ireland, dated 19 8mo (Oct) 1710; proved
1712, copy survived in family, given tc Wm. Edmundson of South Pasa-
dena, CA 1972 and another copy sent by your editor to PRO Dublin.)

It seems that if the Established Church of England and Ireland
could fine one for not attending church services, the Friends, for
their part, could disown one of theirs for marrying a Non Quaker or
for hauling a load of guns or a hundred cther ""waywardnesses." Tit
for tat. Those who picture the earliest Friends to be peaceful, saim~
ly psalm-singers who were never a trouble to anybody should read the
accounts of history. They were often obnoxious, loud street preachers,
calling "meetings™ on corners, blocking traffic, denouncing the Church
of England in-"tumultuous fashion" and refusing to doff their hats to
any authority, who could not be questioned or challenged. Penn himself
was considered a'big noise'by some quite famous people! (It reminds
me of today's street-preachers, who, if one versed in Scripture with-
out clergy-manipulation (mind you) makes a cogent point, they fly from
him in haste, consigning him to Hell-fire for not accepting them as
the only apostles of God. If they are right, I'll burn forevermore!)
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Relative to that attitude, it reminds us of the old joke that
when St. Peter was showing a new arrival around the hecavenly city, &
choir was heard singing behind a very high, doorless, windowless wall.
Yher. azked who it was, Peter replicd: "Oh, that's(name of scct here).
They think they're the only onss up here."

This, I feel, is mainly why Valentine Hollingsworth, undoubbtedly
a closs friend of William Edrundson before the latter removed from
County Armagh to Queens County, has left us so little of his pre-Tuak-
er background, and also, by the way, why in the Friends! records he 1is
always styled Hollingsworth, but in the legal documente I have found

and published here as Hollingworth! (Son Henry left the Friends.)

If he was kinsman to Harrison or to Blacker, Cope or Obbyns, I
think he never would have acknowledged it! For all we know, Henry
Tollinworth's wife Catherine (Xatheran) was a Blacker, a Harrison, a
Cope, a Gill, or another lass from a Plantation family. Many of those
very early settlers {pre 1630) were singlemen who were picked because
of that fact, owing to the dangerous nature of the ¥Mere Irish" as was
so horribly proved on Oct 23, 1641.

Here is the earliest mention of Michacl Harrison. This is from
Depositions Taken after the Rebellion of 1641, Trinity College, Dub-
1in, Manuscript (old number F-3-7, p. 107 - we don't know new number) :

(1) The Relation (testimony - Ed.} of Francis Sacheverell of Leg-
acurry Co Armagh, Esquire ... from the first breaking out of the reb-
ellion on the (23th sic) of Oct 1641 ... he a prisoner ... This Owen
0 Neale brought over with him seven score soldiers and three score of
them he brought with him to Charlemont (Co Armagh - Bd,) and presently
afterwards there was eight of them killed by Captain St. John's troop
for which O'Neale was very sorry and cursed the Irish because they ran
away and left them... '

NOTE:"Captain St. John" was a kinsman,surelyofSir Oliver St. John,
Knight, 2nd son of Nicholas St. John, of Lydiard Tregorze, Co Vilts,
the "undertaker® of 1,500 acres of "Ballymore" alias Tanderagee - the
landlord of Nicholas Wray (a.k.a. Ree) father of the first Mrs. Val-
entine Holling(s)worth. Was Nicholas Wray there that day in arms in
the captain's troop? Sir Cliver St. John's title was Viscount Cran-
dison. Was Wray a kinsman? Note the name Nicholas in the St. John
familyt I have read over many times the whole Muster Roll of 1630,
and many times the tenants' surnames are the same as the landlord, but
this is more noticeable in the Scottish plantations. Francis Sachev-
erell was himself a Grantee or Undertaker of the lands of "Legacorry'
today only a reminder of which survives in the townland of Legacorry
alias Rich Hill, a few miles south west of Portadown and not to be con-
fused with Legaghory (formerly Legacory) in Shankill Parish much near-
er to Ballymacrandal, where, incidentally, in 1664 one Mark Wright, a
(uaker later, whose house was the place of many of the meetings,appears

(2) Deposition # 1 and # 2 of William Duffield, late of Lisonesxy
(today's Lisnisky - Ed.), Parish of Seagoe, Co Armagh, Gent. He was
robbed .and despoiled, also was George Williamslate of Drumgorr, Yeo.
Dep. 9 and 11 Aug 1642. #This deponent with his wife and 4 children
and about 50 householders and their families (note the size of this
company - Bd.) within the parish (of Seagoe) aforesaid, were enforced,
for fear of the rebels, to fly from their habitations, to Lurgan,
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where being taken prisoners they were stript of their clothes andgxn@s.
Some went from thence to Knockfergus (Carrickfergus - Ed.) some to Lis-
nagarvy (now Lisburn - Ed.), and some to Belfast but this dep. and his
family fled to Knockfergus where 2 of this dept's children died bycold
and want, having been stript as aforesaid ... and from thence (he and
his wife and 2 of his children) fled into England where his wife and
they yet are, in great want. His lands worth B30 per annum in Seagoe
and (also) of lands which fell to him in right of his wife by the death
of John Ward her brother etc, who with Richard Duffield his brother
were both wounded by the rebels and died, with their wives and 2ll 6
of John Ward's children.

(3) F.3.9 ibid. Lorlagh or Lirlagh McGwill, Co Antrim. "Sometime
of Tandragee in County Armagh (Original may read Tirlagh - Ed.) aged
30 years ... taken before Edward Conway and Koger Lyndon Esgrs. at
(Carrick)fergus the 5 May 1653. On or about January 16LL (0.5. after
October 23,1641 - Ed.) this examinant with Lt. Col. Aughey O Hanlon
and others were appointed by Sir Phelemy O Neal upon the request of
Mrs. St. Johns (sic) the wife of Captain St. Johns, to convey her and -
Mr. Charles Perkins, Mr. Draiton {Drayton - Ld.); minister of Tandra-
gee, with others 1in their company from Tandrageec to Lisnagarvy (Lis=-
burn, Co Antrim - Ed.), On the way they were met by Toole O Neal &
others who took them and shot Rev. Mr. Drayton, a2 man then aged about
60 yecars, to death & later carried Perkins away and hanged him."(This
Lorlagh McGwill was a rebel, remember, an Irishman - Ed.)

(LY F.3.9 p. 145: Magdalen Gwilliam, wife of Capt. Thomas Gwill-
s (sic) of Ballinderry, Co Antrim, deposed 8 May 3 T.. and her
gaid husband desired time (plea bargaining - Ed.) to take leave of this
Examinant who had sent for MICHAEL HARRISON, her brother-in-law. He
came in and it pleased God he prevailed so much with (the Irish)..."

(5) Ibid p. 38 F.3.8. Mrs. Frances St. John, about 30, wife of
Mr. John St. John ... She lived in Clanbrassill (tells about Capt. St.
~ John and his wife) "Mr. Charles Perkins and Mr. John Drayton were han-
ged, and the rebels ... hanged one THOMAS CALVERT of Clanbrassell this
Lxaminant's neighbour shortly after the (outbreak of the) Rebellion.®

NOTE: As above recited (p. 23), this Thomas Calvert was undoubtedly a
“close relation to John Calvert the grandfather of the second Mrs. Ann
Holling(s)worth, wife of Valentine.

(6) F.3.8, p. 51. Deposition of MICHAEL HARRISON made 10 Jan 1653
(probably 1653/4 - Ed.) before Francis Willoughby and Dudly Loftus,
states (in part) %., when this Examinant by Providence got out of the
Enemy's hands ...," '

There are hundreds of these depositions preserved in TCD, many
published years ago in a totally unindexed book which I saw in the Hun~-
tington Library, San Marino, and others were copied in manuscript -
maybe duplicating the book's contents - .by the late great Saviour of
Irish History, Mr. Arthur Tennyson Groves, Professional Genealogist,
who saved at least a sampling of every class of record in the Record

' Office, before Rory O'Connor and his bloody terrorists destroyed it.
In the continuation of this article we will discuss more of these aw-
ful accounts of bloody Irish history, and try to bring out more about
Harrison and others involved with Valentine Hollingsworth.

TO BE CONTINUED
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"Henry Hollinworth's Holding

After the above lengthy discourse; this will be short. The terms
apparent in the Ulster Plantation preclude that Henry Hollinworth had
iia grant of land" as some have suggested. He was one of Richard Cope's
tenants and that is final. The "genealogy" of the Ballyvickcrannell -
(Ballymacrandal) farm proves that Henry Hollinworth had no control at
all over the sale of his farm from one landlord (Rolleston) to another
(Cope) other than, as a tenant with a lease his right as such had to
be recognized by any new owner. Pynnar's (1619) survey of the Plan-
tation of Ulster shows "Mr. Obbyns" with 2,000 acres planted with Brit-
ish Tenants, 5 freeholders and 15 tenants for years (leases for terms-
of years). Of the freeholders, 3 had 120 acres each, 2 had 100 acres,
and the Lessees for years: L of 100 acres each, 2 of 60, 3 of 66, 2 of
L0 each, 1 of 30 acres, and 3 of 100 acres jointly (held). "These 20
tenants, with undertenants, make 46 men armed (with weapons - Ed.)"
(Calendar of the Carew Manuscripts, James I., p. L15).

Please be aware that this survey was eleven years before the
1630 Muster Roll wherein we first locate Henry Hollinworth on Richard
Cope and "Mr." Obbyns 2,000 acre estate, Number 5 on the list of ten-
ants. (We are not aware if the numbers have any significance with re=~
gard to what preference or precedence each tenant had, but assume that
the first named had more important status than those further down on
the list.) Henry may have been in England in 1619, a mere boy. What we
have noted above in other articles should be kept in mind, as to the
passage of ownership of the townland of Ballyvickcrannell - 120 acres-
down to Valentine Hollingsworth and beyond. But of this we must be
sure: Henry Hollinworth was not a freeholder. He must have held alease
of some kind, probably for years. Both Henry Hollinworth and Valentine
1lacker, in 1632, were lessees from Cope or Obbyns (this latter point
is up for grabs due to errors made by both Pynnar in 1619 and Hill in
1877 - as brought to our attention in a letter of 1 Feb 1966 of Mr. T.
0. F. Paterson on the staff of the Armagh County Museum. Ballyvick~
crannell, though, was, we are assured, in the Cope part of the estate).
On page 24 we presented the proof that both Valentine Hollingsworth &
Valentine Blacker did not obtain the freehold of their respective hold-
ings until the Restoration. Yet in 1632 bothrwere itpeacecably' enjoying
their farms - see HR Sept 1983 p. 51 et seq. (Burke's Landed Gentry,
op.cit. p. 81 misleads the reader thus "The first of the family who
settled in Armagh, Valentine Blacker, of Carrick, Co. Armagh, Commnan-
dant of Horse and Foot (Cavalry and Infantry - Ed.), went from Popp-
leton, Yorkshire, to Ireland and purchased in 1660, from Sir Anthony
Cope, of Loughgall, the manor of Carrowbrack, subsequently known-as
Carrickblacker. He was b. 1597; m. Judith (died 27 March, 166k), dau.
of Michael Harrison of Ballydargan, Co Down, and died 17 Aug. 1677,
leaving issue ..." the reading of which tends to show that Blackerdid
ot come to Ireland until shortly before 1660 when we know that hewas
there in 16321!) #Henry Hollinworth & Valentine Blacker were SO enjoying ...

Henry Hollinworth's "holding" of Ballyvickcrannell somehow ran
out. Leases for years were ordinarily for 33, 66, 99, even 999 years'
duration. TIf Henry got a 33 year lease, say, in 1625, it would have
expired (without a renewal clause) in lé58. But the political upheav-
al of that time (in 1658 Oliver Cromwell was mercifully dead!) may

nave had much to do with_the transactions. HR is_not aware of any such
political influence. In 166L Val Hollingsworth obtained the freehold.
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All the above being.accepted as true (but not proved), There was
at one time a rental ledger of the sort in vogue in all Irish estates,
hundreds of which I have seen over a 25-year period. Usually it would -
give the names of the tenants, the amount of land they held, and by
what means they held it, and finally, the amount of rent due (usually
payable twice a year, on Lady Day - March 25th - New Year's - and on
St. Michael's Day (Michaelmas) .29 September or half year's day) to be
paid. (In Ireland a rent roll is called a "rental.”) This ledger was bas-
ed on the actual documents of leasée. In those days two duplicate cer-
tificates were filled out and signed by landlord, tenant, and witness-
es. The two were usually cut in zigzag fashion and the parties eachhad
their copy, termed the landlord's counterpart and the tenant's counter-
part. (The tooth-like cut is where the term "indenture® comes from.)

Hence, Henry Hollinworth and Richard Cope must have signed dupli-
cate copies of Henry's lease, each thereafter having his own counter-
part. Henry Hollinworth's copy must have perished long ago. But what
of #the landlord's counterpart?" Cope's copy?. Mr. Paterson states in
his 1966 letter: S

"plas the rentals are no longer available as regards the Cope
tenants; part of the property was sold to the Blacker family about
1660 ..." But ... he does not explain how he knows they "are no long-
or available ! the vague almost Victorian rhetoric being ambiguous to
American minds. I take hope in this. Keep on keepin' on!

ceeeece y)rr)y)y) ceeceeeayrr))) )
A Really Holy Man found in the Census!

While rambling through the new filming of the 1860 U.S. Census of In-
" diana, Howard County, p. 603, at dwelling 681 and family 676 we saw
. CHRISTIAN LIFE, 31, male, farmer, personal estate value $350, born in
Ohio. And his family. No further comment.

(((((((TTT((((((((((((((((ﬂ((((((( )})))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))))
‘ Mr. William Keating |

Mr. William Keating was born in Lincoln Co., Maine, Aug 26, 1803,
his father and most of the family being sailors. His father died when
Mr. Keating was quite young. After attaining his majority, he emigra-
ted to Ohio, stayirig there eight years; he then returned to Maine, and
followed the sea for about twelve years. He was engaged chiefly in
coasting, (sailing up or down the U.S. or other coasts - Ed.) making
voyages to Charleston, S.C., and other ports; making, also, one or two
voyages to Portugal. During the last five years of his seafaring life,
he was master of a brig. He,moved to Ohio, in 1837, settling in Sene=~
ca County, and emigrated to this county (Union Co., Iowa - Ed.) in1858,
and has since been engaged in the hardware and agricultural implement
business. He married, in 1832, Miss Mary T. Spalding, and has 3 chil-
c¢ren, ‘one of whom is married.to G. W. Beymer of Afton-another, engaged
in the hardware. business, in partnership with him-the other being also
o citizen of Afton, carrying on a stove and tinware business in the
city. (From Chapter XVII. (no page number) Union County, Iowa 1876 Il-
lustrated Centennial.) This man was the first mate of the Brig Wil-
1Tizm, out of Thomaston, Maine, which was mastered by his brother, Mr.
Richard Keating, which brought our Frederick Hollingsworth from Dublin
to New York between 29 May and 16 July, 1829! : ‘
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We mean, the ship left Dublin 29 May and was in New York harbor by
16 July 1829, Years back letters of inquiry were sent to various New
England repositories in hopes of finding the Master's log of the Brig
William. No luck. We never tried to trace the Keating family to see
if they retained such an item. What a totally fascinating reading it
would make if such was our luck and Captain Keating happened to re-
cord his opinion or description of "Mr. Hollingsworth." Oh, well ...

S O O O G O O O O O O O G O REEEEEEEERRRRRRERE

"Alive" in the Census But Dead in Her Grave!

Sarah Jane Hollingsworth was cold in the coffin the day the cen-
sus enumerator called, but when he left the dwelling, she was Talive™
on his schedule.: He made two copies, sending one to Washing-
ton, the other to the Secretary of State at Jackson, Mississippi, and
we assume that he turned the original over to the Madison County Clerk
to fulfill the regulations for taking the 1860 U.S. Census., We quote
the Federal copy as published on National Archives film, at page 868,
Madison County, Mississippi, 1860, P.O. Canton, lines 25-27:

619-617 Jno. W. Hollingsworth 25m, planter -$2270 Miss.
JANE 221, Georgia
Infant (male) 1 month v Miss.

The enumerator knocked at the door on Friday, 24 August 1860. His
session with Mr. Hollingsworth could not have taken a half hour. The
black wreath was probably removed from the door by that time. The lady
of the house was not there to extend her hospitality, but was out in
the Sulphur Springs Methodist Cemetery. The reading:

SZSARAH J. / wife of J. W. HOLLINGSWORTH / Nov 17, 1835 / July
9, l ‘O.“ '

From Mississippi Bible and Cemetery Records, Vol. 19, p. 187 (1933)
Miss. Gen. Society, Box 5301, Jackson, Mo 39216.

Sarah Jane was dead over six weeks. Why is she listed as living
in the census taken on 24 August? Because the census was taken "as of
Tst June 1860im Official "Census Day.” Some census takers could not
cet this rule straight but this one did. Her age was not accurate ac-
cording to the stone, but census ages are notoriously variable, and,
a"ter all, John was busy with a baby (one month old as of 1 June but
about 4 months old when the census man came by) and despairing for his
Jane and not much interested, we determine, in censuses.

- -— -— - — — - - — - - -— - — — - - — -— —

1st Lt. Henry Hollingsworth's Diary

The Tennessee Historical Society Guide, p- 8, under Descripticn
"of Manuscripts, lists T 37. Diaries, memoirs, etc. Guild, Josephus
Gonn, 1802-1883, and Henry Hollingsworth, 1808-1855. Diaries, 1836-37.
5 yols. Both men were of the 2nd Tenn. Regt. under Brig. Gen. Robert
Armstrong and cover the period 1 Sept 1836-10 Jan 1837 during service
against the 3eminoles in Florida. Hollingsworth's diary began while
his company was encamped at Mt. Meigs, near Montgomery, Alabama. The
men were “almost in revolt over orders to go to Florida at that time
of year.v’
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Both diarists described in much detail the country as they trav-
eled through it ... When the regt. reached Tallahassée, Fla. Gov. Rich-
ard Call took command. The experiences recorded in these diaries dur-
ing the months of October, Nov. and Dec are an example of mismanage-
ment, negligence, and gross inefficiency. The men and horses were mar-
ched back and forth across central Florida through swamps and hammocks
(hummock: a hilly protrusion in a swampy land ~ Ed.) etc. with barely
enough rations to keep the men alive. Call was severely criticized as
was Armstrong and Call was replaced by Gen. Thomas Jesup, U.S5.A. Hen-
ry Hollingsworth later became the Mayor of Nashville, Tennessee. His
diary has been edited and published by Stanley F. Horn in the Tennes-
see Historical Quarterly, Vols. 1 and 2 (1942, .1943). Acq. Nos. 196
and 200, Does anybody know Henry's lineage?

XXX XXXXXTXXXXX g )9'0.00.000.6:00.900.0.0.4

HOLLINGSWORTH MISCELLANY

(1) A Jackson, Miss., paper of 1967 rec. 28 Jan of that year from
Mrs., Jane Brent of Raymond, MS., prepared for HR but deleted and for-
zotten for 19 years, is datelined Forest, Miss.;A. F. Hollingsworth,
nrincipal at Lake attendance center since Jul.l, 1959 has been elected
by Scott County board of education as County Superintendent of Educa-
tion to serve the unexpired term of C. M. Harrison who resigned effec-
tive 1 Feb. Mr., H. received his B.S. degree in math in 1948 at the
University of Southern Miss. and his M.A. in school administration in
1950. He had been principal and coach and served 5 years at Lexie High
High School in Walthall County. He has wife Fannie Mae and 2 children.

(2) The Toronto Star, issue of recent date (1986) tells the hor-
ror at Picton, Prince Edward County, Ontario, Canada, when 6 persons
were killed in an early morning house fire there., Picton is 30 miles
south of Belleville. Sheila Horsburgh, 45, told of the loss of all
“her children. Darryl Hollingsworth, who lives across the street, said

he was awakened about 5 a.m. He said the house was engulfed by flame
when he looked over at-it. (Courtesy Clare Hollingsworth, Edmonton,
Alberta. Darryl Hollingsworth, we believe, is a son of Jack Hollings-
" worth, son of Samuel Hollingsworth, late of Picton, who was son of

William Samuel Hollingsworth, born Ballycanew Parish, Co Wexford, son
of William and Elizabeth "Betty% (Jﬁnes{ Hollingsworth, said William
a supposed elder brother to our Frederick Hollingsworth, both children
of Samuel and Anne (?Earl) Hollingsworth of Ballinakill, which Samuel
was son of John Hollinsworth (1714-1791) of Ballinakill. ‘

(3) Liber 40 of New York Wills, Surrogate, N.Y. City, p. R4l, has
will of James Johnson, Co Wilts, Kingdom of Great Britain, late of Is-
land of Jamaica and now of New York City, dated 19 May l7é9 Among the
bequests is E50. to one John Hollingsworth, of London, G.B., miner, and
‘nis (John's) sister Rebecca Hollingsworth, like amount. -We don't know
who they are. Another bequest was £100 to "Thomas Wignell, a comedian,"
Proved 11 July 1789. Vol.lk, Abstracts of Wills, N.Y. Historical Soc.
p. 160-161 (1905).

(4) vHats Off to Ralph" is the headline (with fine photo - he is
surely one of the Wexfords - no mistake - Ed.) on the SME Program tel-
ling of the retirement of the Executive Director, Ralph Hollingsworth
of Toronto, effective 3 Sept 1985. Special thanks also to Audrey, his
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wife, who is credited for always being there with her husband. (Thanks
to Ralph's brother, Clare Hollingsworth of Edmonton.)

(5) The Siuslaw News, 31 Dec 1985, p.11l-A, (with photo) under the
heading Chiropractor selected for membership, tells us that Dr. Robert
Hollingsworth of Florence, Oregon, has been selected for membership in
the American Chiropractic Association. He is a graduate of Western
States Chiropractic College at Portland, and ia assoclate at theHebert
Clinic in Reedsport. (Thanks to Eileen Gray of Florence. We had to
look up “Siuslaw™ though! Pron: §X-you—slaw.)

(6) Eileen also sent us a cutting out of The Seattle Times, Mon.
10 Oct 1977 in the View section, under byline of Mayumi Tsutakawa. It
deals with a state conference for women of July 1977 and a wrapup meet-
ing of 8 October at which Dorothy Hollingsworth, the committee chair-
person, figured prominently. Seattle is her home and she is a member
of the Washington State Womens Conference Coordinating Committee. We
also have her circular letter (31 Mar 1977) announcing the July 8-10
Conference in Ellensburg. Dorothy is black. (Photo.)

(7} In our search of the U.S. Census we landed on the Mortality
Schedules for Ohio, as published on NARS film T-1159 roll 29, which
will be published later. But for Hamilton County, including Cincin-
natti, there is a most intriguing account mixed in with the records. It
is the Summary for compensation for one Robert McGrew who took that
part of the 1860 census, with others:

Number of names in schedule 1 11,414 @ 2 cents $228 .28
Ditto 3 147 @ 2 cents 2.94
Do. Productive

Establishments sched. 5 70.15 10,50
Do. of pages copied 590 @ 8 cents L7.20

Do. of Dwelling houses 904 Square root thereof 30
Do. Square miles 459/640 Sq. Root thereof
Do. Square miles travelled 415/25

Compensation for travel 25 miles @ .10 cents 2.50

Summary for compensation Robt. McGrew k) .
Now you know the rest of . . . the story. Note he made COPIES.,
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Bibb County, Georgia Hollingsworth Marriages.

1. John M. Hollingsworth to Euphemia Cunningham 3 Oct 1833 (A - 163).
5. Margaret Jane Hollingsworth to Eliphalet E. Brown 3 Nov 1836 (228).
3. John Hollingsworth, Jr. to Mildred H. Johnston 3 Oct 1843 (B-8O)5

)
)

. Henrietta Hollingsworth to Abraham P. Adams, 5 Nov 1850 (B - 229
5. William E. Hollingsworth to July A. Pender, 14 Nov 1852 (B - 289
27-1839; B 1840-1852. (See HR Mar 1986 pp. l4-15.
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CORRECTION & ADDITION: For p. 68 Dec 1985 item 17 should read Benja-
min Davidb, Murdock5, David A.L4 etc. Ivem L3, 87 & 102 on p. 09 are
three of the daughters (Vada, Maud and Eva) are 3 of the 9 d%ughters
of Bill Gressett and Mary Emma Hollingsworth - Isaac3, Isaac<, Jacob-+.
Thanks to Dr. Harold Graham of Belle Chasse, Louisiana 70037.
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Letters to the Editor:

- (1) From Robert. Holllngsworth, of ‘R. Holllngsworth & Son Build-
ers and Contractors, 32 Tandragee Road, Portadown Northern Ireland

Dear Mr. Holllngsworth . 7th November, 1965,

Thank you for your letter. I am afrald I cannot give you a lot
of information. I did often hear my late father say that the Hollings-
worths came over from England with King William (3rd - Editor). Whilst
I live in Portadwn, I was born near Rathfriland in the townland of Dru-
markin., Both my father and grandfather were born in Drumarkin., There
is another famlly of Hollingsworths in the townland of Drumlough,Rath-
friland, which is close to Clonduff, and are probably the same clanyou
speak of. The present occupier is Alexander Holllngsworth whose fa-
ther was Henry. Alexander, who never marrled, is now approachlng 70
years, and my father and he were cousins. My grandfather was .  David,
and he had two sons and one daughter. The sons were James and Robert
and the daughter Minnie. I am a son of James, and have two brothers-
Samuel James and David Henry. My sisters are Sadie and Martha. My un-
cle Robert, now over 80, married but had no famlly. My own family is.
one son only - Robert James.

My brother Samuel James has one son, named James, and two daugh-
ters, Maisie and Roberta. My -brother David Henry is also married but
has no sons. His daughters are Mavis and Jill, who are really only
half-sisters, as David was married twice and Mav1s was by his lst wife.

We all still cling to the Presbyterian faith. Samuel James and Da-
vid Henry, who still live near Rathfriland, belong to 1lst Rathfriland
Presbyterian Church, as does my father's cousin, Alexander, and his
predecessors. The church dates to the early l7th century, and there
may be some records there (late 1700s marriages; after 1800 others -Ed)
“he present minister is The Rev. R. H. Morrlson I belong to Armagh
Road Presbyterian Church, Portadown.

I had no knowledge of the Ballymacrandall 'Henry! you speak of),
nor am I aware of his actual place of residence, although Ballymac-
randall is only a short distance outside the town of Portadown,where
I live, Of course I am only living in Portadown since I marrled 20
years ago. I am sorry there are no actual records of the family inour
possession, but- if you think ‘there is any way I can help you furtherI
will do my best.

Yours sincerely, R. Hollingsworth

NOTHE: HR never contacted him again. But we contacted most of those of
the older membership in the "Rathfriland Famlly" of Hollingsworths. It
resulted in our articles in the earliest issues here. To refreshyour
genealogical memory: Henry Hollinsworth (fl 1693-1711) of King Hiil,
alias Kinkell, Clonduff Parish, Co Down, m Elizabeth, d of John New—
ell, 6-Clerk in Chancery, Dublln. His famlly has been in that area ev-
er since., We have for all these years nourished the thought that he
was a brother to Valentine Hollingsworth, who lived as you can tell
from the above letter, just a flew miles away. Minnie Taylor, mentioned
above has been a faithful correspondent for .almost 25 years. She has
told us that a tradition in the family tells of one of her family, in
a distant generation, going down south into County Wexford, Ireland,
thus beginning the famlly of your editor there at Ballycenew. We have
never nourished a feeling for this theory. But it certainly could be
so. We tglnk our John Hollinsworth came from somewhere in England be-
fore 174
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(2) From Saramary (Sally) A. Weikel, Genealogy/Local History,
State Library, Harrisburg, Box 1601, Penna. 17105:

14 May 1986
Dear Mr. Hollingsworth:

We are replying to your recent request concerning the 1870 Feder-
al Census for Pennsylvania. In 1961, our only copy of the federal cen-
sus for 1870 was one of the manuscript copies of the original reccords
which was bound into book form. Apparently page number 1192 was the num-
ber stamped on the ms. copy. Unfortunately, this copy was returned to
the National Archives in Washington, D.C. (at their insistence) some
years ago. Our ms. copy may have been the "State Copy" of the federal
census which was to have been deposited with the Secretary of State of
each state or territory. Our copy of this material was found wedged in
an old roll top desk in the basement of the main Capitol building.

We now have only the microfilm of the 1870 census for Penna. Our
entire collection of federal census records for Penna. (1790-1910) con-
sists of microfilm copies purchased from the National Archives. Wehope
this information is helpful in your research.

NOTE: This was in response to your editor's ongoing search for the oth-
er copies of the census! We happened to look at the entry for a Wil-
liam Hollingsworth family in Mercer County 1&€70 (West Salem Twp. p.162
enumerated 27 July 1870) on T-8 roll 349 NARS, and then refer to alet-
ter dated 1 Mar 1961 from this same office and Miss Weikel (who did a
shipload of free genealogy for us on our McFadden-Peterson CrawfordCo.
families before the 'cutbacks! ended it) and noticed that her refer-
ence was on p. 1192. In 1961 that would never have fazed us., But the
letter we just wrote was to see if what we thought was true and it was.
Your editor's constant queries to NARS some years back about census
copies other than NARS ones has paid off and HR takes part of the cre-
dit for alerting them to their existance. Incidentally, in the Fed.
copy the wife Elizabeth Hollingsworth is 6# while in the State copy

is 66, all other items the same. But in a whole state there may bemany
copyist errors - thousands and thousands of them!  As in p. 33 above,
item 7, the census taker was paid to take down 11,414 names and was
paid 2 cents 2 name, and then got 8 cents a page for copying them all
over again - 590 pages. If one man did that, what was the percentageof
error accumulated due to fatigue or other factors before electric
lights? Now each of you go to your nearest old courthouse and look
for the local original of the 1850-60-70 won't you please? Don't ask
the clerks or deputies. They will give you the fish eye and wish that
you never came in there., Look for these bundles of treasure yourself
and if you find one notify the National Archives and try to make a Xe-
rox copy if it is not too hard, to give to a local repository.
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U.S, CENSUS OF_187O - OMISSION: Territory of COLORADO.

Las Animas County (M=593 roll 95.)
Page LL5, lines 23-~24; P.O. Trinidad, C.T. Taken 23 June 1870.
34-37 ANNIE HOLLINSWORTH, 25f, house keeper  born "Tenese'
-38 Dolores Maria Martin, L5%, Do. born New Mexico.

(Dolores is marked unable to read or write.)

DUS TO A MISSING ROLL (T-8 roll 119) OF KENTUCKY 1870 and a 5-months
wait (still waiting) for an LDS replacement (M-593 6 rolls!) the sec-
ond portion of Kentucky will be published in our September issue.
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U.S. CENSUS OF 1860 - OMISSIONS & CORRECTIONS.
MISSOURTI

Monroe County From New Filming NARS M-653 roll 635.
Page 112, Clay Twp., lines 9-19, P.0O. Paris; 19 July 1860.

754-75L John C, Kipper 37m, miller $4,000-8050  Virginia
Laura 3L ‘ . Kentucky
Ella 13f (attended school) Missouri
Dewilton (?) - 1lm Do. Do.
Laura , 11f - Do. Do.
Mary 2f (sic: out of order) Do,
Belle 7f Do.
Alice o 5¢f ' 4 Do.
DAVID HOLLINGSWORTH . 23m, farm hand Do.
Virginia Hollingsworth 12f (att. school) Do.
Edwin Hollingsworth 10m Do. Do.

NOTE: See Dec 1967 HR p. 143, aged 13, 3, 1 month respectively in 1850
rousehold of George and Elizabeth Hollingsworth.

Page 169, Jackson Twp., lines 32-37, P.O. Paris; 1k August 1860.

1154-1154 D. H. Moss 33m, attorney 4000-3300 Missouri
) Melvill Moss 26f, (sic) Do.
Mary B. Moss : 3f ‘ ' - Do.
Pauline Moss R 2 "male® Do.

MARTIA HOLLINGWORTH (sic)52f /common sch.  Kentucky
George A. Hollingsworth 25f (sic) teacher/ Do.

‘NOTE: See HR Dec 1967 p. 141 in Carroll-Co., Missouri 1850. Maria was
wife of Benjamin Hollingsworth, and "Georgiana' their dau. age 15.

Page 181, ibid, lines 21-24, 17 August 1860. /27 500

1242-1253 O. P. Gentry © L6m, bank cashier 3500/ Kentucky

- Ann E.. . L2f ’ Do.
-Martha E. Bower 20f (school) Missouri
EMER HOLLINGSWORTH 11f (sie) (school) Do.

NOTE: This probably is "Emma® Hollingsworth,; age 1 year, in Monroe Co.
1850, in house of Gustavus Bower per HR Dec 1967 p. 143. Besides
calling his house guest "Emer", how come this bank cashier had so
darn much personal property? $27,500.00 is hard to come by on a sala-
ry. Any scandalmongers out there?  For more on the Bower connection,
see next article,
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MISSOURI HOLLINGSWORTH MARRIAGES

This is a systematic coverage of all counties we could get aoess to
similar to our recent coverage of most of the Louisiana parishes. How-
ever, Missouri is not so easy. Elizabeth Prather Ellsberry copied ma-
ny marriages in many counties on mimeo years ago. Raymer, Walker &
Woodruff are other such publishers.- B '

Boone County, 1821 to ? published by Evans in 1933. ton.

(1) William Hollansworth to Martha Donoha, 26 Dec 1837 Mathew C. Pat~-
Cape Girardeau, Book B, 1839-54 Woodruff (1976) . JJI.P.
charles J. Hollingsworth-Elisabeth Wingate 18 Jul 1854 Homer Parr,

(E. 439) . . A _
Clay, 1822-1900, Ellsberry in 3 volumes.
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(3) Mary Hellen Hollingsworth to David S. Gordon, 20 Jan 1859, by W.
C. Barrett (B # 1268).
Cole Co., Missouri, 1821-1851, Ellsberry.
T0,) Jemes Hollingsworth & Margaret Heont 8 Dec 1836 by Wm. Miller, JP.
Dallas Co., Missouri, 1867-18§O Books A-B, Woodruff, 1972.
(5) Shelby Hollensworth & Arrilla Pierce, 27 Mar 1870, M. N. Hilder-
brand, J.P. Book A, p. 51.
Douglas Co., Missouri, 1866-1889 Ellsberry ("C.H. burned 1886.)
T6) ¥, M. Hollingsworth & Julia Conklin, 17 Sept 1889.
Gasconade Co., Missouri, 1822-1893 from originals 13 in HR Mar 83 v.l2.
Greene Co., Missouri 1833-60, A & B Woodruff 1971.
(7} Sarah Hollingsworth & Robert B.Porter, 31 Aug 1852 by A. H. Walker,
J. P. A:2L1. /Min.,
(8) Martha E. Hollingsworth & Benjamin L. Edge, 21 Qct 1858 Wm. Denby,
(9) Harbin Hollingsworth & Minerva Reese 12 Dec 1858 Joel H. HaZum,
Elder, Christian Church.
(10) Ruth Hollingsworth & Miles P. Reese, 13 May 1860 B.H. Bills, Min.
Jackson Co., Missouri, 1827-1860, by Mrs. John Vineyard, 1967.
(11) Susan Hollensworth & Sidney Kerby of Kentucky, 22 Nov 1842 by Jac-
ob Brown Hovey, p. 22, of Vol. I.
- Jasper Co., Missouri 1865-1874 Books C-D by Betty Harrington.
(127 Caroline Hollingsworth & Henry Man, 23 Apr 1870, Soloman Kerr, JP,
Book C:287.
(13) Marion gollingsworth & Mary E. Bird 26 Oct 1871, John M. Hays, JP,
Book D:63.
(14) Thomas Hollingsworth & Mary E. Harker 31 Dec 1872 by O.M. Stewart,
Minister. D:188. (T. Hollingsworth was a J.P. in 1873.)
Johnson Co., Missouri 1835-1879 by E. P. Ellsberry.
(15) Ludiska Hollensworth & Franklin Y. Harris, Mar 18, 1867.
Livingston Co., Missouri 1837-1880.
(16) Emma Bollingsworth & E. J. Broaddus 6 May 1874.
Marion Co., Missouri 9 Jan 1827 - 10 July 1856 Books A-B, Woodruff.
(T7) William Hollingsworth & Caroline Luck, Andrew Broaddus Min,
1 Nov 1843 Book A:233.
Miller Co., Missouri by Thelma Hickok 1974, 1837-1891 Books A-C.
(18) Thomas Hollandsworth & Mary Ann Phillips, 5 Mar 1891, Daniel Rob-
inett, J.P. C:589,
(19) William P. Hollandsworth, Gasconade Co., Mo. & Ludemia Haddox, by
Daniel Robinett, J.P. 22 Apr 1891, C:597.
Monroe Co., Missouri Book A 1831~-1849. /Minister 241
(70) Francis Hollingsworth & Martha J. Bower, 30 June 1847, Norman Parks
(21) George Hollingsworth & Elizabeth Ann Meason 5 Jun 1836, Thomas
Thompson, Minister, p. 41. (Sorry: out of order.)
Morgan Co., Missouri 1833-1909 6 books.
(22) William Hollandsworth & Mottie Webb 21 Dec 1906, H. E. Neville,
Probate Judge Book 6:399.
(23) James W. Hollinsworth & Senna F. Perry 24 Dec 1903, Frird Bahren-
burg, J.P. 6:210 (Oh oh: out of order agin!)
Platte Co., Missouri 1839-1855 by Nadine Hodges 1966.
(2L) Jacob Hollingsworth & Mary Moore 24 Dec 1840 Jas Dorland, JP A:29.
. Louis City & County 1804-1876, 2 Vols. St. Louis Gen. Society.
Willis Hollingsworth & Caroline A. Austin 14 April 1842. 2:395.
Lovinia J. Hollingsworth & Francis H. Learned 12 Feb 1860. 9:544.
7ebulon D. Hollingsworth & Alice Reily 3 Apr 1871. 15:59.
Anna M. Hollingworth (sic) & James S. Sloan 4 June 187L. 16:297.
Robert Hollingworth & Louisa Layfield 18 Jan 1870. 14:349.
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Concluded. Some of these have been in HR before, but putting them in
one list appears to be worth a repeat or two. Unfortunately, it 1s a
probability that several errors have been committed, over which we
have no control, Margaret "Heont® at item 4 is a sure example, and the
#WFrird" Bahrenburg Justice of the Peace is another. These are the _
counties we searched which had no Hollingsworth entries: Adair 1841-70
which had a fire damaging many records; Audrain 1836-79; Barry 1837-54
Benton 1839-72; Buchanan 1839-55; Caldwell 1345-71;,%@&3@% %820-—40;
Carroll 1833-66; Carter 1860-80; Cass (formerly Van Buren 836-65;
Chariton 1821-52; Clark 1837-19117 Cooper 1819-50; Crawford 1829-55;
Duade 1863-72; Daviess 1836-55; Dent 1851-70; Franklin 1819-58; Grundy
T8L1-64; Holt ca 18L41-51 (on fiIm of originall; Howard 1816-60; Jef-
Ferson 1821-69; Lafayette 1821-50; Lewis 1833-637 Lincoln 1825-LL;
Linn 1842-70; Mcﬁona%a 1865-78; Macon 1840-53; Pemiscot 1882-98; Perr
T825-41; Polk I836-59; Ray 1820-30; Saline 1820-69; ot. Charles 1805-
LL; St, Francois 1836-65; St. Genevieve 1807-27; 1842-667 Sullivan
184,5-99; Texas 1847-76; Warren 1833-60; Webster 1855-67; v_fh_g"'E__IBm T 1897-
1900 (courthouse burned I897, records from 1841 lost). Other counties
not yet examined include these which had Hollingsworths in them when
the 1850 Census was taken: Bates, Henry, Knox (Lillard), Moniteau,

- New Madrid, Osage and Washington. It is our understanding that the LDS
G.S5. has filmed all the courthouses in Missouri. Anybody donating the
fee of $2.25 for a 3-week interlibrary loan to your editor should give
the name of the county marriages they want checked for Hollingsworths.
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Oneida County, New York, Hollingworth Naturalizations.
Letter of 26 May 1966, Co. Clerk, Utica, N.Y. listed the following:

(a) Joseph Hollinpgworth, b England 1811, naturalized 22 Oct 188k.

(b) Joseph Hollingsworth (sic), Jr. b .England 1848, naturalized 12
Oct -1872. Both County Court, Oneida County, N.Y. We never saw the pa-
pers in these files. The second name is, however, Hollingworth.

OBITUARY: Frederick Hollingsworth,‘Vancbuver, Canada 1953.

Hollingsworth - Aug 7th, 1953 in Shaughnessy Hospital, Frederick Hol-
lingsworth of LOL7 W. 15th in his 70th year. Served in World War One
with R.AM.C., British Army and was formerly employed with the Station
Master staff, Canadian Pacific Railway. Survived by his loving wife,
Myra; one son, Frederick, 3 grandchildren, 2 sisters in England. Fun-
eral service Tues. Aug. 1lth, 1953 at 3 pm in the Memorial Chapel of
the T. Edwards Co., Granville, Rev. G. Turpin officiating. Interment,
Tountain View, Vancouver, Province of British Columbia. %From card in-~
dex to newspapers, Society of Genealogists, Harrington Gardens, London,
Tagland. Our donor did not give us the name of the newspaper. This is
attached to a letter from the office of Public Trustee, Vancouver dat-
ed 16 June 1970, seeking heirs of another man of the same name who left
an estate of $4,000:00. That Frederick Hollingsworth was believed to
‘have been born in Ireland about 1875. Obviously the above was not the
man. Apparently the Public Trustee (same as Public Administrator in
the U.S.A.) had consulted the 3.0.G. and they had submitted the . .above
as a clue. As far as we can tell, the above Frederick was probably a
cousin of your editor and a descendant of the County Wexford family.)
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